» Earth Negotl ations Bulletin

A Reportl ng Service for Environment and Devel opment Negotl ations
IFF-4 on-line at http://www.iisd.ca/forestry/iff4/

Vol. 13 No. 63

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development

Wednesday, 9 February 2000

IFF-4HIGHLIGHTS
TUESDAY, 8 FEBRUARY 2000

Onthe seventh day of IFF-4, delegates met in Working Group 1 to
further discuss bracketed text on underlying causes of deforestation,
TFRK and monitoring progressin implementation. The contact group
oninternational arrangements and mechanisms (Category I11) metin
morning and evening sessions. Contact groups on financial resources
and trade and environment met in the afternoon and the contact group
on EST transfer also met in an evening session.

WORKING GROUP 1

UNDERLYING CAUSESOF DEFORESTATION: Regarding
revised text on an action proposal requesting international financial
institutionsto explore, in cooperation with donor and recipient coun-
tries, innovative financial approachesand schemesfor helping coun-
triesto promote SFM, ECUADOR said the new formulation wastoo
general and did not addressthe issue of countrieswith largeforeign
debt. Delegates agreed to amended text requesting financial institu-
tionsto anayze theimpacts of foreign debt on deforestation and forest
degradation. Del egates al so adopted an action proposal inviting inter-
national financial institutionsto strengthen transparency in decision-

making asit affects SFM and to ensure that their policies support SFM.

Regarding a conclusion identifying underlying causes, Co-Chair
Asadi noted that areferenceto “corruption” remains bracketed.

TRADITIONAL FOREST-RELATED KNOWLEDGE: Onan
action proposal regarding cooperation between countriesand interna-
tional organizationsto develop an understanding of therelationship
between I PR, sui generisor other relevant systemsfor protection of
TFRK and the CBD, CANADA, supported by the US, suggested
deleting “asappropriate” inreferenceto understanding the rel ationship
and including language referring to the origins of TFRK. BRAZIL,
supported by COLOMBIA, proposed retaining text on theidentifica-
tion of theorigins of TFRK and associated genetic resources. The
PHILIPPINES supported referenceto “ genetic resources.” GABON
supported reference to “ associated genetic resources.” The US stated
that TFRK implicitly includes genetic resources. CANADA put
forward two bracketed options, onereferring to knowledge of related
genetic resources, and the other referring to associated forest biolog-
ical resources, as defined by the CBD. No consensus was reached.

Delegates agreed to merge two action proposalsinviting the CBD
COP with the participation of indigenous and local communities
through the CBD Ad Hoc Working Group to collect, record, apply and
locate TFRK. BRAZIL insisted on qualifying areferenceto approval
of the holders of TFRK with one of thefollowing: “legal,” “formal,”
“prior” or “informed,” and quoted the UN Draft Declaration of Rights
of Indigenous Peoplesto further support their proposal. NORWAY
supported qualifying “approval.” The US opposed, stating that the
Declaration addressesindigenous peoples’ involvement in the deci-
sion-making process and is not relevant in this context. ECUADOR
advocated reference to participation of indigenous organizations and
stateingtitutions. JAPAN lamented the new text made no direct refer-
enceto Article8 (j) inreferenceto the Ad Hoc Working Group. The EU
suggested adding referenceto related provisions of “ other relevant
international instruments.” No consensus was reached.

MONITORING PROGRESSIN IMPLEMENTATION: Onan
action proposal encouraging consultation with countries regarding
collection and synthesis of national information, AUSTRALIA,
supported by the EU, proposed replacing text on validating theinfor-
mation synthesized with language on facilitating accurate reporting.
CANADA suggested instead having countries verify information
synthesized and del egates agreed. Co-Chair Asadi said remaining
unresolved issues should be discussed informally.

CONTACT GROUPS

INTERNATIONAL ARRANGEMENTSAND MECHA-
NISMS(CATEGORY I11): Thegroup considered arevised version
of thé Co-Chairstext and focused on the structure and modalities of the
proposed arrangement. Regarding the proposed UNFF, one devel oped
country supported, and others opposed, deleting the word * perma-
nent.” Several delegates called to del ete a paragraph on anegotiating
processtoward aL Bl. Others opposed, with one delegate calling to
delete”in due course” and requesting that atimeframe for an INC be
specified. Several devel oping countries expressed concern that a new
LBl would not provide funds. Some delegatesdrew attention to the
lack of consensus on anon-legally binding arrangement, and others
speculated that anew forum would not bring action.

Devel oping countries advocated including aglobal forest fund as
part of the structure of the arrangement rather than asafunction. One
developed country opposed, indicating support for mobilizing such a
fund only asafunction. With regard to the proposed partnership on
forests, one del egate suggested that afuture UN partnership on forests

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by Radoslav Dimitrov <rado@polisci.umn.edu>, lan Fry <ifry@mpx.com.au>, Lauralvers
<laurai @iisd.org>, Wendy Jackson <wendyj @chickmail.com>, Violette L acloche <violette@iisd.org>, and Leila Mead <leila@interport.net>. The Editor is Pamela Chasek,
Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Editor isL angston James"Kimo" Goree <kimo@iisd.org>. Digital editing by Andrei Henry <andrei @iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors
of the Bulletin are The Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for
Environment, Forests and L andscape, the United Kingdom Department for International Devel opment (DFID) and the European Commission (DG-X1.) General Support for the
Bulletin during 2000 is provided by the the German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Devel opment Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish
Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Ministry of Environment of Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairsand Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairsand Ministry
of Environment of Finland, the Government of Sweden, the Government of Australia, the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility
(GEF) and BP Amoco. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. |1SD can be contacted by e-mail at
<info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of the
authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications only and
only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Managing Editor. Electronic versions of the Bulletin are sent
toe-mail distribution listsand can befound on the LinkagesWWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. The satelliteimagewastaken above New York ©2000 TheLiving Earth,
Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information on the Earth Negotiations Bulletin, send e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Earth Negotiations Bulletin

Wednesday, 9 February 2000

Vol. 13 No. 63 Page 2

be chaired by the FAO and act as asteering committee. Several others
preferred the original formulation and the proposed amendments
remain in brackets.

In discussing the modalities of the arrangement, one devel oped
country suggested, and other del egates opposed, deleting “taking
decisions’ from the mandate of the proposed UNFF. Del egates
debated the frequency of the proposed UNFF meetings, with some
supporting annual and others biannual. Some developed countries
supported reviewing the work of afuture UNFF, but opinionsvaried
asto whether this should befive or ten years after its establishment.
On aparagraph regarding the UNFF possibly recommending the
establishment of ad hoc subsidiary bodiesfor scientific, technical and
expert advice, aswell as mechanismsfor finance and EST transfer,
some del egates suggested replacing “ bodies” with “ expert meetings.”
Some del egates preferred del eting “ mechanismsfor finance and
transfer of ESTS’ and many devel oping countries opposed.

In discussing aparagraph on financial support for the proposed
arrangement, one devel oping country pointed out, and others agreed,
that funding for administrative and operational activities should be
regarded as separate.

In the evening, the contact group reconvened and began delibera-
tionson anew Chair'stext. The group made progress on the objec-
tivesand principal functions of an international arrangement on
forests. On the objective of aninternational arrangement on forests,
delegates considered two options from the Chair’stext. A number of
delegations preferred the original text which, inter alia, seekslong-
term political and legal commitment and alegal framework to
promote and implement international ly agreed action on forests.
Otherspreferred aformulation, provided by adevel oped country,
which, inter alia, promotes the sustainable management of all types
of forests and strengthens commitment to thisend. The Chair
proposed acombination of thesetwo paragraphs. On the combined
text, aregional group of developing countries sought del etion of any
referenceto aL BI. A group of developed countries proposed, and
another opposed, phraseol ogy based around the management, conser-
vation and sustainable development of all types of forests.

On the chapeau to the principal functions of theinternational
arrangement, adevel oped country proposed, and others opposed,
deleting referenceto alist of general functions. A developed country
suggested that policy dialogue and devel opment be based on scien-
tific principles. Devel oping countries opposed thisreference. A group
of developed countries proposed an additional function that fostersa
common understanding of SFM. On afunction relating to coordina-
tion, adeveloped country proposed areference to contributing syner-
giesand collaboration among existing international organizations,
institutions and conventions. A developing country sought reference
to fostering regional and international cooperation including North-
South and public-private partnerships. A developing country had
difficulty withthelegal and judicia coordination of thedifferent legal
instrumentsrelevant to forests. Otherswere not so concerned. The
Chair consolidated all the proposals on the functions of the interna-
tional arrangement on forestsinto two paragraphs.

FINANCE: The contact group on financial resources discussed
text on an international forest fund and made progress on some
elements of thetext. Delegates could not agree on whether an interna-
tional forest fund was " proposed” or "suggested.”

Ontherole of aninternational arrangement or mechanism and the
involvement of donors and beneficiariesin decision-making, one
developed country preferred inserting " participating” before donors
and "relevant” before decision-making. Delegates agreed that the
financial mechanism would build on and link with national financing

mechanisms and agreed to del ete reference to environmental agree-
mentsin the context of complementing the financing mechani sms of
multilateral agreements. The contact group concluded early to allow
for informal consultations.

TRADE AND ENVIRONM ENT: Regarding bracketed refer-
enceto biological resourcesin an action proposal onillegal tradein
wood and non-wood forest products, devel oping countries suggested
referring to the CBD definition. A developed country preferred not to
import outside definitions and preferred reference to forest-related
biological resources. Delegates agreed and the text was adopted.
Regarding aconclusiononillegal trade, delegates also agreed to
replace areferenceto biological resourceswith forest-related biolog-
ical resources. Regarding a conclusion on increased market transpar-
ency for improving market accessfor forest productsand services,
many delegates supported including language specifying products
and servicesfrom sustai nably managed forests. One devel oped
country expressed concern that this reference might unduly empha-
size market transparency for products and services from sustainably
managed forests. Devel oping countries opposed referenceto products
and services from sustai nably managed forests. Thetext will be
further discussed during informal consultations, along with the action
proposalson trade liberalization and voluntary certification.

TRANSFER OF ESTs. The group discussed, but did not reach
consensus on, the two remaining unresolved proposalsfor action. On
an action proposal regarding the devel opment of mechanismsto link
TFRK and IPR, adeveloped country suggested itsdeletion asit is
addressed in TFRK under Working Group 1. Many devel oping coun-
tries opposed its del etion and suggested alternative text referring to,
inter alia, the establishment and enforcement of TFRK-related IPR,
and prior informed consent from and due recognition of knowledge
holders. Developed countriesinsisted that el ements of the developing
countries' text were covered by an action proposal under TFRK in
Working Group 1. Recalling specific recommendations of the
Commission on the Elimination of Racial Discrimination in order to
support its position, adevel oping country expressed concern about
bracketed text on TFRK and itslack of referenceto indigenous
peoples. In response, adevel oped country explained that the text
already agreed on reflectsthe devel oping countries' position, and that
the EST transfer group wastrying to go further than the TFRK group.
Theissue remainsunresolved.

On an action proposal regarding benefit-sharing, developing
countries proposed text on promoting fair and equitabl e sharing of the
benefits of the utilization of forest biological resourcesand the results
of research and its applications, aswell asrecognition of the origin of
such resourceswithin IPR, sui generisor other relevant systemsfor
protection. No agreement was reached. The contact group will
consider both action proposals at its next session.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Deliberations over alegally binding instrument on forestsare
becoming more fractious with opposing campstaking awinner-take-
all attitude. Inretaliation for acall to bracket al referencestoaLBlI,
proponentsof aL Bl have called for the deletion of referenceto an
ongoing UN forum on forests. M ost del egates suggest that this
reflects a state of positioning rather than afinal position.

THINGSTO LOOK FOR

CONTACT GROUPS: The contact group on transfer of ESTs
will meet at 10:00 am in Conference Room 8 to discussremaining
unresolved action proposals. The contact group on international
arrangements and mechanisms (Category I11) will meet at 11:00 amin
aroom to be determined, and at 3:00 pm in Conference Room 7.



	IFF-4 HIGHLIGHTS TUESDAY, 8 FEBRUARY 2000
	THINGS TO LOOK FOR


